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EMPLOYMENT CASES DOMINATE
SUPREME COURT DOCKET

TheU.S. SupremeCourt beganits2001-2002termwithan
unusually high number of employment casesonitsdocket,
and it is likely that more will be added during the term.
Fourteen cases have been accepted for review, including:

FMLA. Ragsdale v. Wolverine Worldwide, Inc.is
the first FMLA case to reach the high court. It involves
theissue of whether an employee not told that her time of f
would count asFMLA leaveisentitled to additional |leave.
Ragsdale was given seven months medical leave for
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cancer treatment but not told by her employer that the
leave would count toward her 12-week FMLA entitle-
ment. After her leave expired, she requested FMLA
leave. Her employer told her that she had used all FMLA

IN THIS ISSUE

EMPLOYMENT CASES DOMINATE SUPREME

COURT DOCKET Page 1
ENOUGH IS ENOUGH:

REGULAR ATTENDANCE IS AN ESSENTIAL
FUNCTION OF JOB UNDER THE ADA Page 2
SEXUAL HARASSMENT
NOT THAT EASY TO SHOW Page 4

THE BUSH LABOR BOARD: WHO'S ON FIRST?  Page 5
EMPLOYEE COMMITTEES THAT PERFORM
MANAGERIAL FUNCTIONS ARE NOT
“LABOR ORGANIZATIONS” Page 6
PLEADING POVERTY DURING BARGAINING MAY
REQUIRE PRODUCTION OF SUPPORTING
INFORMATION Page 7
WARN ACT LIABILITY MAY BE GREATER
THAN YOU THINK Page 8
EMPLOYERS MUST BARGAIN OVER HIDDEN
SURVEILLANCE CAMERAS THAT MONITOR
EMPLOYEES Page 9
FIRST AMENDMENT RETALIATION CLAIM:
“FREE SPEECH” DOESN'T MEAN

“FREE SPEECH” FOR PUBLIC SECTOR
EMPLOYEES Page 10
UNION VIDEOTAPING OF REPLACEMENT WORKERS
DURING A STRIKE VIOLATES THE NLRA Page 11

WEDDER, PRICE, KALFRAAR & KAMMROLE



OO0 T1.PF 2L, K AUk & {AMRIIDLE  Labor Law

January 2002

leave. Ragsdale sued under a DOL regulation providing
that leave does not count against an employee’'s FMLA
entitlement if thetimeoff isnot designated by theemployer
asFMLA time. Thelower court invaidated the regulation
because it gives an employee more time than the statute
requires. On appedl theEighth Circuit affirmed, sidingwith
the Eleventh Circuit, which had earlier reached the same
result. Other courts have upheld the regulation, causing a
split of authority that the Supreme Court will resolve.

NLRA. In Hoffman Plastic Compound, Inc. v.
NLRB,theNLRB reinstated an employeefired for engag-
inginpro-unionactivity. Duringacompliancehearingover
the computation of back pay, the employee disclosed that
he was an undocumented aien. The Board dropped
reinstatement as a remedy but ordered that back pay be
paid to the date the parties learned the employee was
undocumented. The DC Circuit Court of Appeals en-
forced the Board's order in a 5-4 decision. The court
rejected the employer’ s argument that an individua must
be considered unavailable for work (and therefore not
entitled to back pay) during any period when he is not
lawfully present and employed in the United States.

ADA. Williams v. Toyota Motor Mfg., Kentucky,
Inc., raisesthequestion of how restrictiveadisability must
beonanemployee sability towork to render theemployee
“disabled” under theADA. The Sixth Circuit found that an
employee was disabled because her limb, shoulder and
neck impairments substantialy limited her ability to per-
form the range of tasks associated with her assembly-line
job.

ERISA. InMoranv. Rush Prudential HMO, Inc.,
a medica benefit plan participant sued Rush under the
linoisHMO Act after it had denied her claim for surgery
reimbursement because the procedure was not deemed
medically necessary. Rush argued that Moran’ sstate law
actionwasaclaimfor benefitspreempted by ERISA. The
trial court agreed and granted summary judgment to Rush
becauseit had not abused itsdiscretion or acted arbitrarily
in denying the claim. The Seventh Circuit reversed on the
ground that the state law fell within a savings clause in
ERISA excepting from preemption laws that regulate
insurance.

EEOC. EEOC v. Waffle House, Inc., involvesthe
extent to which the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission, inbringing asuitinitsown name, isbound by
a private arbitration agreement between the charging
party and his employer. The EEOC action was brought
under the ADA seeking relief on behalf of an employee
who had signed anemployment applicationwithaprovision
requiring him to submit to binding arbitration any clam
concerning hisemployment. The Fourth Circuit concluded
that although the EEOC could not becompelledtoarbitrate
itsclaims; it could seek injunctiverdief against theemployer.

The Supreme Court’s decisions in these cases and
others will be discussed in subsequent issues of this
newdetter. In the meantime, if you have any questions
about any of the issues raised by these pending Supreme
Court cases, cal Jim Petrie (312/609-7660) or any other
Vedder Price attorney with whom you have worked.

ENOUGH IS ENOUGH:
REGULAR ATTENDANCE IS AN ESSENTIAL
FUNCTION OF A JOB UNDER THE ADA

The United States Court of Appeals for the Seventh
Circuit recently held that an employee's request for
unlimited sick days was not a reasonable accommodation
under the Americans With Disabilities Act (“ADA”).
EEOCv. Yellow Freight Systems, Inc.,253F.3d 943 (7th
Cir. 2001), involved atrucking company dockworker who
suffered from AIDS and Kaposi's sacoma, a cancer
related to AIDS. The plaintiff had a history of poor
attendance and was ultimately terminated for excessive
absenteeism. Specificaly, in 1991 he left early twice and
caledinsick 37 times; in 1992 heleft work early onceand
took 15 days off; in 1993 heleft early 4 times and was out
126 days, in 1994 he left work early 3 times and took 47
daysoff; and in 1995 heleft work early 3 timesand called
in sick 50 times.

In 1995, plaintiff contacted his supervisor and re-
quested time off for amedica condition. The supervisor
explained to plaintiff that he was not digible for FMLA
leave, but offered him a90-day unpaid |eave of absenceas
andternative. Instead, plaintiff chosetosmply call insick
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for the next two weeks. In December 1995, plaintiff was
diagnosed as HIV positive and, in January 1996, was
diagnosed with Kaposi’s sacoma. On January 12, 1996,
plaintiff sent aletter to his supervisor gpprising him of his
medical problems.

Paintiff’s attendance worsened. He called in sick
every day in January, February, and March 1996. At that
timeY ellow Freight decided totreat plaintiff under itsfive-
step progressive disciplinary policy. Under the policy, the
company had a step 1 “coaching session” with him, and
shortly thereafter sent him a step 2 letter. Plaintiff re-
sponded by reminding thecompany of hisillness. Whenthe
absences continued, the company sent a step 3 letter and
plaintiff wrote back again, reminding the company of his
medical condition.

Yellow Freight responded by sending an ADA ac-
commodation form. Plaintiff returned a letter stating he
was “requesting no particular considerations at this time
other than the reasonable accommodation necessary to
monitor and maintain my health status.. . [| want] sick days
as needed without being penaized.”

Maintiff missed the next 10 of 19 working days,
resulting in adisciplinary suspension. He was terminated
for excessive absences afew monthslater. Plaintiff filed
a charge with the EEOC, aleging that the company
disciplined him on account of his disability and denied his
request for reasonabl eaccommodation. The EEOC brought
suitagaingt Y ellow Freight,

erratic, unexplained absences, even when those absences
are aresult of adisability...in most cases, attendance at
the jobgite is a basic requirement of most jobs.” Further,
the court stated that it is not the existence of the absences
themselves, but the* excessivefrequency of anemployee's
absencesinrelationto that employee’ sjob responsibilities
that may lead to a finding that an employee is unable to
perform the duties of hisjob.”

Ontheclamthat Y elow Freight failed to accommo-
date plaintiff, the court determined that plaintiff’s request
for “unlimited sick days, if needed, without being penal-
ized” was not a reasonable request as a matter of law
because “businesses are not obligated to tolerate erratic,
unreliable attendance or to provide an accommodation
which would impose an undue hardship on the business.”

Moreover, an employer is not required to provide an
employeethe specific accommodation requested. Y elow
Freight met itsburden to interact with plaintiff regarding a
reasonable accommodation, offered him the option of 90
days medica leave, and sent him an accommodation
review form. Plaintiff rebuffed the company’s efforts.

Other ADA Highlights in the Seventh Circuit

Shortly after the Yellow Freight decison, the Seventh
Circuit ruled in another case involving the issue of the
“essentia function of the job.” In Winfrey v. City of

Chicago, 259 F.3d 610 (7th

andtheplaintiff intervened.
The lower court granted

summary judgment for the
employer on the
employee’s claims.

On apped, the Sev-
enth Circuit affirmed the
lower court’ sdecision. The

“essential function.”

The critical question on appeal was whether
an essential function of plaintiff’s full-time
position was regular attendance, and if so,
whether he met the requirement for

Cir. 2001), the court deter-
mined that the essentia func-
tions of the pogtion of city
ward clerk were those listed
ontheofficial job description,
and the fact that the city of-
fered to accommodate the
employee by modifying the

critical question on apped
was whether an essentia function of plaintiff’s full-time
position wasregular attendance, and if so, whether hemet
the requirement for “essential function.”

The court reasoned that this circuit, and every other
circuit that has addressed this issue, has held that in most
instances the “ADA does not protect persons who have

position did not mean that the

duties included in the modified pogtion were the only

essential functions of thejob. The court found the plaintiff

could not demonstrate that he could perform the essentia
functions of the city ward position.

On several occasions the Seventh Circuit dealt with

theissue of reassigning adisabled employeefromajob he
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cannot perform to one he can. In EEOC v. Humiston —
Keeling, 227 F.3d 1024 (7th Cir. 2000), the court held that
an employer is not required to reassign a disabled em-
ployee to a vacant postion if another, more qualified
candidate has applied “provided that it is the employer’s
consistent and honest policy to hire the best applicant for
the particular job in question rather than the first qudified
applicant.”

In Ozlowski v. Henderson, 237 F.3d 837 (7th Cir.
2001), the court placed a dtrict burden on the disabled
employee to show thereisavacant position for which he
was qudified. The plaintiff in Oz/owskiargued that there
wereseveral open positionsintowhichtheemployer could
havetransferred him. However, the court stated that the
plaintiff wasnot qualified for any of the positions, and that
several positions were not actualy vacant. Specificaly,
the company had placed an “informal hold” on one of the
positions while a new computer system was installed
whichwouldlikely changethejob requirements. Thecourt
stated “we do not believe that an employer isrequired to
fill aposition which, based on areason wholly independent
of the employee sdisability, it had chosen not to fill. Such
aposition is not vacant.”

Fndly, in Williams v. United Insurance Co., 253
F.3d 280 (7th Cir. 2001), the court held that an employer
is not required to provide specid training to qudify a
disabled employee for an open job. The court reasoned
that the ADA doesnot requirean employer to offer special
training to a disabled employee that is not offered to
nondisabled employees.

If you have any questions about Yellow Freight, or
any other questionsinvolvingthe ADA, pleasecal Angda
Pavlatos(312/609-7541), Barry Hartstein (312/609-7745)
or any other Vedder Price attorney with whom you have
worked.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT NOT THAT
EASY TO SHOW

Employers face anxiety and risk whenever they face a
sexua harassment clam. But, several recent decisions
from the Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals (covering

Ilinois, Indiana and Wisconsin) make it more difficult for
aharassment plaintiff to prevail when thereisno tangible
employment action.

The court’s decisions have established two genera
hurdlesto proveclaimsof environmental harassment. The
firstisproof that the conduct has*the purpose or effect of
unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work
performanceor creating anintimidating, hogtileor offensive
work environment.” Wolf v. Northwest Indiana
Symphony Society, 250 F.3d 1136, 1143 (7th Cir. 2001).
The second requires proof of conduct that is sufficiently
severe or pervasive that areasonable person would find
it hostile and that the victim considers it as abusive.
Murray v. Chicago Transit Authority, 252 F.3d 880, 889
(7th Cir. 2001).

In assessing severity and pervasivenessof thealleged
conduct, courts look at “the frequency of the discrimina
tory conduct; itsseverity; whether itisphysicaly threaten-
ing or humiliating, or a mere offensive utterance; and
whether it unreasonably interferes with an employee's
work performance.” Smith v. Sheahan, 189 F.3d 529,
533-34 (7th Cir. 1999). Recent Seventh Circuit decisons
provide some help in applying the standard.

The Seventh Circuit recognizesthat Title VII “do[eg]
not mandate admirable behavior fromemployers.” Russell
v. Board of Trustees of University of Illinois, 243 F.3d
336, 343 (7th Cir. 2001). Thus, “‘smpleteasing,” offhand
comments and isolated incidents (unless extremely seri-
ous) will not amount to discriminatory changes in the
‘terms and conditions of employment.”” Adusumilli v.
City of Chicago, 164 F.3d 353, 361 (7th Cir. 1998).
Rarely will mere offensive comments, particularly when
they arefew and far between, constitute asexually hostile
environment when they are not physicaly intimidating,
threatening or sexua ly suggestive. For example, inRussell
the Seventh Circuit found no clam when a supervisor
referredtoafemaleemployeeas” Grandma,” commented
to her that al intelligent women were unattractive, and
madeinappropriate commentsreferring to another female
employee as a “bitch,” “deazy” and saying that she
dressed “like a whore.” A district court in the Seventh
Circuit rejected a harassment claim when a supervisor,
over a nine-month period, told severa “blonde jokes™ or
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madeinappropriate comments about blondesto hisfemale
staff. Harris v. Moorman'’s Inc., Case No. | PO0-140-C-
H/G, 2001 WL 1168174 (SD. Ind., Aug. 14, 2001).
Employersprevailed on summary judgment in these cases
aswdll:

- A supervisor who, on two occasions, told a
female employee that he would like to have
sexud intercoursewith her 15-year old daughter.
Rizzov. Sheahan, CaseNo. 00C2494, 2001 WL
1117435 (7th Cir., Sept. 20, 2001).

- Over a sx-month period, a law firm partner
requested that hissecretary show him picturesof
herself wearing lingerie, commented to her about
her undergarments and questioned whether she
bought items at arisqué lingerie store. Pryor v.
Seyfarth, Shaw, Fairweather & Geraldson,
212 F.3d 976 (7th Cir., May 11, 2000).

- A co-worker once brushed up against another
maleemployeewhilestandinginfront of aurind.
Stewart v. General Motors Corp., Case No.
99C0628, 2001 WL 710106 (N.D. Ill., June 22,
2001).

What, then, does constitute sexual harassment? Gener-
aly, the conduct must involve unwanted, forcible contact
or threat of contact, inappropriate touching, and/or lewd
propositions for sex. Hostetler v. Quality Dining, Inc.,
218 F.3d 798, 807-08 (7th Cir. 2000). Nevertheless, each
case stands on its own facts. The longer the conduct
continues and the more offensive it becomes, the more
likely ajudge will let ajury decide the issue. And, in that
event, a jury may be much more inclined to hold an
employer accountable after hearing and seeing the plain-
tiff testify in court.

If you have any questions about thisissue, please call
Rachel Barner (312/609-7836), Barry Hartstein (312/609-
7745) or any other Vedder Price attorney with whom you
have worked.

THE BUSH LABORBOARD: WHOQO’S ON FIRST?

The President has the opportunity to greetly influence the
labor laws of our country through appointments to the
Nationa Labor Relations Board, which is responsible for
enforcing the National Labor Relations Act. The Presi-
dent aso designates the Chairman of the Board. The
Board is responsible for resolving unfair labor practices
and determining which labor organization, if any, should
represent employeesin bargaining. TheBoard, essentially
ajudicia body, conssts of five members appointed by the
President (with the advice and consent of the Senate) for
staggered five-year terms, athough an individual chosen
to fill avacancy fills only the unexpired term of the prior
member.

Although the law does not require any particular
politica mix, tradition has dictated since 1947 that the
political party holding the White House gets three seats
andtheother party two. However, the President must wait
for vacanciesto shift thebalanceto hisliking, since Board
members can be involuntarily removed only for good
cause. Whenthe Senateisnot in session, the President can
make* recessappointments’ to theBoard, whicharegood
for amaximum of one year.

The President aso appoints the General Counsdl of
the NLRB (again with advice and consent of the Senate)
for a four-year term. The General Counsel investigates
and decides whether unfair labor practice charges should
gotocomplaint, and, if so, the General Counsel prosecutes
the Complaint. The General Counsel also represents the
Board in court proceedings to enforce or review Board
decisions.

Currently, there are three vacancies on the Board.
Thefollowing arethe statutory five-year termsby expira
tion dates and the status of each:

December 16, 2002
Filled by Democrat WilmaB. Liebman, aClinton
appointee. Liebman previousy served as Deputy
Director of the Federal Mediation Conciliation
Service and other positionsin that agency. Prior
to that, she was counsel for the Bricklayers,
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counsel to the Teamsters, and a staff attorney
with the NLRB.

August 27, 2003
Vacant, but R. Alex Acosta was nominated by
President Bush on October 4, 2001, and isawait-
ing Senate confirmation. Acostais currently the
Deputy Attorney Generd in the Office of Civil
Rights at the U.S. Department of Justice.

December 16, 2004

Currently held by Democrat Dennis P. Walsh
under arecess appointment by President Clinton,
whonominated Walshtoafull term shortly before
he left office. Bush withdrew Wash's nomina
tion, and his recess appointment will expirewhen
the Senate adjourns its 2002 session. However,
the word now in Washington is that Bush will
nominate Walsh for afull statutory term that will
run until December of 2004.

August 27, 2005
Currently vacant.

August 27, 2006

Vacant, but currently being filled by the Bush
recess appointment of Peter Hurtgen, aRepubli-
can gppointed by Clinton to a statutory term that
expired on August 27, 2001. Hurtgen, whom
President Bush designated as NLRB Chairman,
can serve until the end of the current session of
Congressin 2002, or until the Senate confirms a
nominee, whichever occurs first. Hurtgen previ-
ously was a partner in a management side law
firm.

The General Counsd’ ssituation isnot asconfus-
ing. In May, Bush nominated Arthur Rosenfeld for the
post, and hewas unanimoudly confirmed by the Senate on
May 26, 2001. Prior to becoming General Counsd,
Rosenfeld served as Senior Labor Counsd of the Senate
Committee on Health, Education, L abor and Pensionsand
asaSenior Advisor to Senator James Jeffords on matters
concerning labor and employment law.

Thus, President Bushtheoretically hasthe opportunity
toappoint amgjority of memberswith conservativejudicia
and labor philosophies like his own and shape the law
accordingly; including, perhaps, revisting some of the
decisons of the liberal Clinton Board. However, it is not
clear how quickly Bush will act in this area or how
successful hewill be, not only becauseof thedl-consuming
war against terrorism, but because of thel ossof the Senate
majority and itspotentia negativeimpact on the confirma:
tion process.

If you haveany questionsabout the composition of the
NLRB, please call Deric Bomar (312/609-7726),
George Blake (312/609-7520) or any other Vedder Price
attorney with whom you have worked.

EMPLOYEE COMMITTEES THAT PERFORM
MANAGERIAL FUNCTIONS ARE NOT
“LABOR ORGANIZATIONS”

Ruling onthe controversia subject of “employee commit-
tees,” the Nationa Labor Relations Board unanimoudy
held that empl oyee committees created to perform mana-
geria functionswere not “labor organizations’ within the
meaning of the NLRA.

In Crown Cork & Seal Co., 334 NLRB No. 92
(2001), the employer operated an a uminum manufactur-
ing plant where, since the plant’s opening, authority was
delegated to employees to operate the plant through
participation on various committees. All seven of the
committees at issue made decisions by a process of
discussion and consensus. Although managers served on
the committees, management members held no greater
authority than other committee members.

Under the committee system, four of the seven
committees were designated as “ production teams,” and
every employee in the plant participated on one of them.
The production teams were empowered to take action
with respect to production, quality issues, training, atten-
dance, safety and discipline short of suspension or dis-
charge. The production teams had authority to decide
which members were given forma and informal training,
could counsd employees and recommend suspension or
discharge and administered the plant’ s absentee program
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by deciding requestsfor time off and whether an absence
was excused or unexcused.

Three other committees — the organizationa review
board, the advancement certification board and the safety
committee — operated at one administrative level above
the production teams. Each of these three committees
consisted of employees and management. Many of the
higher-level committee decisions were reviewed by a
team that consisted solely of plant managers. The organi-
zationa review board was responsible for reviewing
production team recommendations of suspension or disci-
pline. The advancement certification board certified em-
ployee skill levels and recommended pay increasesto the
plant manager. The safety committee reviewed produc-
tion team accident reports and considered the best meth-
ods to ensure a safe workplace.

The employer was charged with violating Section
8(8)(2) of the Act by dominating or supporting a “labor
organization.” In considering whether the seven commit-
tees congtituted “labor organizations’ within the meaning
of theAct, theBoard stated that under Section 2(5) alabor
organization must exist for the purpose, inwholeor in part,
of “deding with” the employer regarding terms and
conditions of employment. The Board noted that theterm
“dedling with” contemplates abilateral mechanism under
which the employer and the employee committees submit
to one another’s proposals concerning the terms and
conditions of employment and engage in negotiations.

In this case the Board affirmed the Administrative
Law Judge's (“ALJ’) dismissa of the complaint and
found that the committees do not “deal with” an employer
if their purpose is to perform essentially managerial
functions. The Board held that because the committees
exercised authority that was unquestionably managerial,
they werenot “labor organizations’ within the meaning of
the Act. The Board reasoned, in part:

“* * * what is occurring in the Respondent’s
facility is the familiar process of a manageria
recommendation making its way up the chain of
command. Higher-management review of arec-
ommendation made by lower management cannot
be equated to the ‘dedling’ between an employer
and arepresentative of itsemployee contemplated

by the statute. Indeed, it is the fact that the
interaction is occurring between two management
bodiesthat distinguishesthis case from cases such
as* * * [citations omitted] and persuades us that
the statutory element of dealing is absent.”

Crown Cork establishes that employers will not
violate Section 8(8)(2) by maintaining employee commit-
teesthat possessred authority akinto management. If this
authority is established, the fact that the decisions of the
committees are subject to review by other manageria
employeesdoesnot convert themto*labor organizations.”

If you have any questions about thisissue, please call
Deric Bomar (312/609-7726), Larry Casazza (312/609-
7770) or any other VVedder Price attorney with whom you
have worked.

PLEADING POVERTY DURING BARGAINING
MAY REQUIRE PRODUCTION OF
SUPPORTING INFORMATION

TheBoard recently outlined its position with respect tothe
duty of anemployer to producefinancial information, upon
union request, when the employer claims during bargain-
ing negotiations that it is not able to meet union demands
for wage increases.

In Lakeland Bus Lines, Inc., 335 NLRB No. 29
(August 27, 1999), the president of the company sent a
| etter to empl oyeeswhen theempl oyer and unionwerenot
ableto reach agreement on acompensation package. The
letter stated, in relevant part:

Wearetrying to bring the bottom line back into the
black . . . We are asking for help from our
LAKELAND FAMILY so we may retain your
jobsand get back inthe black inthe short term . . .
| ask you to give the enclosed Final Offer your
seriousconsideration and vote Y EStoratify it. The
future of Lakeland depends on it.

The union then requested that the employer alow its
accountant to review the employer’ s books and records.
The employer refused, stating it did not claim itsfinancial
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position precluded agreement to the union proposals. The
Genera Counsd dlegedthat theemployer violated Sections
8(a)(5) and (1) of the Act by refusing to provide the union
with access to the requested financial information.
However, theAL Jfound noviolationbecausetheemployer
was not claiming inability to pay.

In a 3-to-1 decision, Board Members Liebman,
Truesdale, and Walsh reversed the ALJ decision. The
Boardrelied subgtantialy onitsprior decisonin Skell Co.,
313 NLRB 133 (1993), where it held that an employer’s
duty to discloserelevant financia information istriggered
by claimsthat its present circumstances were “bad” and
a“matter of survivad,” that it was “losing business,” and
“faced seriousregulatory and cost problems.” The Board
concludedin Lakeland Bus that the message containedin
theemployer’ sletter to employeeswasnot distinguishable
from that found to trigger the employer’s obligation to
disclosefinancia informationinShell Co. Specificaly,the
Board reasoned that the employer’s letter conveyed a
sense of immediacy that it could not afford to pay more
thanitsfinal offer, that it was not profitable, that itsloss of
revenue was permanent and that its proposas were
premised on its immediate need to make up for the
permanent |oss.

This case highlights the needs for employer caution
when making fiscal objectionsto union contract proposals.
Employers should be careful to avoid inferring inability to
meet union wage demands based on a weak financia
positionat risk of havingto producefinancia recordstothe
union.

If you have any questions about thisissue, please call
Deric Bomar (312/609-7726), George Blake (312/
609-7520) or any other Vedder Price attorney with whom
you have worked.

WARN ACT LIABILITY MAY BE GREATER
THAN YOU THINK

In today’ s uncertain economy, many employers are re-
structuring operations, laying off workers and closing
facilities. Employerswith 100 or more employees may be
required to provide 60 days advance notice of a“mass

layoff” or “plant closing” under the Workers Adjustment

Retraining Notification Act (“WARN”). An Employer

deciding when to make an announcement regarding a
masslayoff or plant closing must, inadditionto considering

the possible reactions by investors, merger partners, the

public, the government, and its own employees, comply

with obligations at risk of penaties under WARN. Em-

ployers who fail to provide timely notice of an impending

mass layoff or plant closing may beligbleto their employ-

ees for up to 60 days of back pay.

As part of the decision-making process, an employer
must determine the expense it would incur if it hasto pay
back pay to its employees for the number of daysitisin
violation of the notice requirement. WARN provides that
the back pay must be paid at “the average regular rate
received by such employee during the last 3 years of the
employee’'s employment” or “the fina regular rate re-
ceived by such employee,” whichever is higher. While it
appearsthat it should be simpleto determine the potential
ligbility for a WARN violation, the statute never clearly
definestheterm “back pay.” Consequently, if anactionis
brought against an employer for unpaid WARN damages,
the courts have the discretion to define back pay in away
that an employer may not have considered. Some court
decisions show that an employer’ s back pay liability may
be greater than expected.

First, whilethemgority of courtsholdthat anemployer’s
ligbility under WARN should be the number of days the
employeeswould haveworked during the violation period,
afew jurisdictions, most notably the Third Circuit Court of
Appeals(withjurisdiction over Pennsylvania, New Jersey
and Delaware), haveheld that theliability isfor thenumber
of calendar days during the violation period. In United
Steelworkers of America v. North Star Steel Co.,5F.3d
39 (3d Cir. 1993), the Third Circuit concluded that back
pay damagesunder WARN wereintended to beaform of
liquidated damages. According to the court, the use of the
term“back pay” wasmeant to establishameasureof daily
damagesto be multiplied by the number of daysduring the
period of violation and not intended to represent the actual
wagesan employeewould have earned during that period.

In a recent case, Local Joint Executive Bd. of
Culinary/Bartender Trust Fund v. Las Vegas Sands
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Inc., 244 F.3d 1152 (9th Cir. 2001), the Court of Appeds
for the Ninth Circuit considered the definition of back pay
under WARN. The

These cases show that employers must take care to
make correct calculationsof WARN liability based onthe
law in their jurisdiction.

employer, Sands, violated
WARN by giving its
employees only 45 days
notice that the casino would
beclosing. FacingaWARN
violaion for not providing
thefull 60days notice, Sands
agreed to pay the workers

expected.

If an action is brought against an employer
for unpaid WARN damages, the courts have
the discretion to define back pay in a way
that an employer may not have considered.
Some courtdecisions showthat an employer’s
back pay liability may be greater than

Employersshouldensurethat
they are including the cor-
rect types of compensation
and correct number of days
and do not deduct payments
made under aseparatelegal
commitment. If calculations
are made incorrectly, the

anadditional 15daysof back

pay. However, Sands did not include tips the employees
might have earned during that 15-day period or the extra
pay for those employees who would have worked on the
July 4" holiday. Sands also deducted the amounts of
severance payments it had made to the employees in
exchange for staying on the job until the casino closed.

The employees union sued Sands, seeking the tips
and holiday pay and obj ecting to the severance pay set-off.
Thelower court agreed that tipsand holiday pay should be
included in the back pay award and severance pay should
not be deducted. The Ninth Circuit Court of Appeas
affirmed.

The court of appeals reasoned that back pay under
WARN isintended to provide laid-off employees with a
sum equa towhat they would havereceived had thenotice
violation not occurred. The court aso noted that back pay
awards under other federa statutes (e.g., the National
Labor Relations Act and Title V11 of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964) include forms of compensation such as holiday
pay, overtime pay, shift differentias, interest, sick days,
vacation pay and tips. Then, the court rejected the em-
ployer set-off for severancepay, stating that under WARN
an employer may reduceitsback pay liability only by “any
voluntary and unconditional payment by the employer to
the employeethat is not required by any legal obligation.”
29U.S.C. §2104(8)(2)(B). Because Sandswasobligated
to make the severance payments to the employees under
alegally enforceable agreement, itsWARN liability could
not be reduced by those amounts.

The United States Supreme Court denied the
employer’s request for further review.

additiona costs can include
not only the extra back pay but interest, lega fees, and
possibly the plaintiffs attorneys fees.

If you need assistance in andyzing your particular
Stuation, or have any other questions regarding WARN,
pleasecdl Ron WeisenberginNew Y ork (212/407-7709),
TomWildein Chicago (312/609-7821) or any other \VVedder
Price attorney with whom you have worked.

EMPLOYERS MUST BARGAIN OVER
HIDDEN SURVEILLANCE CAMERAS THAT
MONITOR EMPLOYEES

Reaffirmingaprior ruling, arecent decisionby theNational
L abor RelationsBoard makes clear that an employer must
bargain withitsunion prior to instaling hidden surveillance
cameras in the workplace. In a 2-1 decision the Board
reaffirmedthat employer useof hiddensurveillancecameras
isamandatory subject of bargaining. The Board also held
that an employer has an obligation to respond to an
information request from aunion concerning useof hidden
surveillance cameras. National Steel Corp., 335 NLRB
No. 60 (August 27, 2001).

In National Steel, the employer periodically used
hidden camerasto investigate specific cases of suspected
theft or other instances of wrongdoing. The union asked
the employer for information regarding its use of hidden
camerasand stated that the employer needed totalk tothe
union beforeit installed additional cameras. Inafollow-up
letter to the employer, the union stated that “the use of
hidden surveillance cameras has been deemed by the
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Nationa Labor Relations Board asamandatory subject
of bargaining and the Union has not waived its right to
bargain over the subject.” In addition, the letter re-
quested “ &l information concerning any existing hidden
surveillance camerasthat our membersare subjected to
that exist in any and all areas.”

The employer responded by letter, stating that
“disclosing the location of this equipment would defest
its purpose,” and that “the Company does not believe
that the Union is entitled to this information.” After
receipt of this letter, the union filed an unfair labor
practice charge and an Administrative Law Judge held
that the employer violated Sections 8(a)(5) and (1) by
refusng to bargain with the union over the hidden
cameras and by failing to seek an accommaodation with
the union over its confidentiality concerns.

Affirming the ALJ decision, the Board cited its
decison in Colgate-Palmolive Co., 323 NLRB 515
(1997), where it held that employer use of hidden
surveillance camerastoinvestigate workpl acetheft and
employee misconduct was a mandatory subject of
bargaining becausethe*insta lation of surveillancecam-
eras is both germane to the working environment and
outside the scope of manageria decisions lying at the
core of entrepreneuria control.” The employer in Na-
tional Steel unsuccessfully attempted to distinguish
Colgate-Palmolive by arguing thet it did not utilize
hidden surveillancecamerasinareassuch asrestrooms.

The Board aso affirmed the ALJ holding that the
employer violated the Act by (1) refusing to providethe
union with information pertaining to existing hidden
surveillance cameras and (2) refusing to bargain for an
accommodation to the union’ sinformation request per-
taining to thelocation of the cameras. The Board stated
that the employer had an obligation to come forward
with an offer of an accommodation to the unioniif it had
confidentiality concerns about the location and use of
the cameras. Unless National Steel is reversed or
limited, employers considering the use of surveillance
cameras in the workplace must treat it as a mandatory
subject of bargaining.

If you have any questions about this issue, please
cal Deric Bomar (312/609-7726), George Blake (312/

609-7520) or any other VVedder Price attorney with whom
you have worked.

FIRST AMENDMENT RETALIATION CLAIM:
“FREE SPEECH” DOESN’T MEAN

“FREE SPEECH” FOR PUBLIC SECTOR
EMPLOYEES

A public sector employeecannot smply claim*“ freespeech”
when allegedly terminated in retdiation for whistle-blow-
ing. In order to prevail on a First Amendment retdiation
claim, a plaintiff’s speech must be congtitutionaly pro-
tected and have been amotivating factor intheemployer’s
actions. Speech by apublicemployeeis* protected” if: (1) it
addressesanissueof publicconcernand (2) theemployee's
interest in speaking outweighs the interest of the state in
efficiently providing services. To determine whether the
speech implicates a public concern, courts examine con-
tent, form, context, and motivation —with content being the
most important.

The United States Court of Appedls for the Seventh
Circuit recently applied thisanalyssin Wallscetti v. Fox,
Lagges et al., 258 F.3d 662 (7th Cir. 2001). Plaintiff
Stephanie Wallscetti worked for the Cook County
Department of Environmental Control. After noticing that
two of her supervisors were sometimes absent from their
officesin the afternoons, she hired a private investigator to
tail one of them. She concluded that the two supervisors
often stayed on the clock while engaging in persona
business away from the office and informed the Cook
County Comptroller of her suspicions. She thereafter
complained to the County’ sEEQ officer that the sametwo
supervisors were harassing her for her whistle-blowing.

Shortly after Wallscetti reported her complaintsto the
Comptroller, the Director of her Department met with
Wallscetti about her failing tofollow the chain of command.
At the meeting Wallscetti refused to revea to whom she
made her reports and would not provide documentation to
substantiate her alegations.

Wallscetti [ater participated inapredisciplinary hearing
to address charges that she: (1) had harassed one of the
two supervisors at issue; (2) was insubordinate; (3) failed
to properly perform her duties; (4) lied to supervisors; and
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(5) submitted false documents in her work. After the
hearing, Wallscetti was terminated.

Wallscetti filed suit against the two supervisors and
the Department Director in their individua and officia
capacities, aleging retaliation in the form of harassment,
false reprimands and her eventual termination because
she exercised her First Amendment rights. The U.S.
District Court found that the only protected speech was
the information about her supervisors failure to work.
Wallscetti unsuccessfully argued that a// of her speech
was protected, including her complaints of harassment.

On appedl, the Seventh Circuit found that Wall scetti’ s
alegations of harassment were more in the nature of a
private personnel dispute than amatter of public interest.
The content of her complaints involved persona matters,
rather than issues involving her department as a whole.
The Court noted that, “[g]enerdly, speech relating to only
the effect an employer’ s action had on the speaker is not
shielded by the First Amendment, sinceit rarely involves
amatter of publicconcern.” Further, thefact that Wall scetti
contacted internal superiors rather than bringing the al-
leged harassment into view of those outside the County
supportedthefinding that her complaintswerenot amatter
of public concern and therefore not protected.

This case reassures public employers that employee
use of the First Amendment as a defense to pending
disciplineisnot automatic—

because they could not “claim not to have known that
disciplining Myers under these circumstances would not
implicate her right to free speech.”

If you have any questions about thisissue, please call
Katie Colvin (312/609-7872), Jm Spizzo (312/609-7705)
or any other Vedder Price attorney with whom you have
worked.

UNION VIDEOTAPING OF REPLACEMENT
WORKERS DURING A STRIKE VIOLATES
THE NLRA

In aruling that may reduce intimidation against replace-
ment workers crossing picket lines, the Nationa Labor
RelationsBoard recently held that aunion violated the Act
where picketers videotaped replacement workers enter-
ing and exiting the employer’s facilities, recorded their
license plate numbers and directed abusive remarks to-
ward them.

InGeneral Teamsters, Warehousemen and Helpers
Union (Basic Vegetable Products, L.P.), 335 NLRB
No. 55 (August 27, 2001), the union struck after the
contract expired and the employer hired replacements
whowereeventually converted to permanent repl acements.
The union instructed its picket line captains and picketers

to have a video camera

when the speech at issueis
not one of public concern.
But, public employers must
be aware of employee

...public employers must be aware of employee
speech that does involve a public concern.

available at all times,
allegedly to record any
violence or violations of the
law on the part of the

speech that does involve a

public concern. For example, in Meyers v. Hasara, 226
F.3d 821 (7th Cir. 2000), acity hedth inspector brought an
actionagainstthecity’ smayor and health director, alleging
that the issuance of a5-day suspension for her comments
about an unlawfully operating food market violated her
First Amendment rights. The Seventh Circuit found a
legitimate claim, observing that the city turned a “blind
eye’ to a known permit violation that posed a potential
hedlth risk, and that the employee’ scommentsinvolved a
meatter of public concern. Moreover, the mayor and
director werenot entitled to qudifiedimmunity inthiscase,

employer and to record
events on the picket line in the event of any allegations of
misconduct on the part of picketers. However, the union
picketers used the camerasto videotape vehiclesentering
and exiting the facility. The cameras were aimed at
license plates and the occupants of the vehicles. In one
incident, while a picketer was using a camera, another
union supporter used a bullhorn to cdl out the license
number of each vehicle entering the facility. Picketers
simultaneously sometimes shouted obscenities at the
replacements.
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The Administrative Law Judge held that the Union
violated Section 8(b)(1)(A) by videotaping the replace-
ment employees, their vehicles and license plates. A
Board mgority affirmed the finding that, athough video-
taping employees is not by itself a violation of the Act,
when picketers combined the videotaping with other
action that indicatesthat the union may react negatively to
employees who fail to honor a picket line, such conduct
violates the Act.

From now on, union videotaping of replacement work-
ersor other peopl e attempting to cross picket linesmay be
unlawful when it is combined with abusive remarks or
other conduct that has areasonable tendency toinstill fear
of retribution in the minds of replacement or crossover
employees.

If you have any questions about this decision or about
picket line conduct generally, plesse call Deric Bomar
(312/609-7726), Larry Casazza (312/609-7770) or any
other VVedder Priceattorney withwhomyou haveworked.
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